
…………………………...  

Page 1 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

Meeting: WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Place: Access the On-Line Meeting here 

Date: Thursday 7 January 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding, of Democratic Services, 

County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01249 706612 EXT 21612 or email 
kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

 
Membership: 
 
Cllr Junab Ali - Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Abdul Amin - Swindon Borough Council 
Mamie Beasant – Co-opted Independent member 
Cllr Alan Bishop - Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Richard Britton - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Ross Henning - Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Vinay Manro – Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr Brian Mathew – Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Nick Murry - Wiltshire Council 
Anna Richardson – Co-opted Independent member 
Cllr Tom Rounds – Wiltshire Council 
Cllr Jonathon Seed – Wiltshire Council 
Cllr John Smale - Wiltshire Council 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 
Cllr Peter Evans 
Cllr Sue Evans 
Cllr Tony Trotman 
Cllr Sarah Gibson 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
Cllr Gordon King 
Cllr Jim Lynch 
 

 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_MTQ3NWIxNmItOTdjNi00MGMxLThiZTgtZTZhNzZmMmQ5ZDcw%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%25225546e75e-3be1-4813-b0ff-26651ea2fe19%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522eac178fe-8556-450d-a98c-19da7475b9c1%2522%257d&data=04%7C01%7CKevin.Fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C9b2893aaa5fe4e1bcbd808d8a1d8fbe3%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637437300597100610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=bP6V%2F583P1rImmHm6nxxnvpOr4mHAkrXKP59LTedDSQ%3D&reserved=0


…………………………...  

Page 2 

 

 
 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv. At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability 
resulting from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings 
they accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 

available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here 
 
 

Public Participation 
 

During the ongoing Covid-19 situation the Council is operating revised procedures for 
public participation. 

 
Access the On-Line Meeting here 

https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=14031
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_MTQ3NWIxNmItOTdjNi00MGMxLThiZTgtZTZhNzZmMmQ5ZDcw%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%25225546e75e-3be1-4813-b0ff-26651ea2fe19%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522eac178fe-8556-450d-a98c-19da7475b9c1%2522%257d&data=04%7C01%7CKevin.Fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C9b2893aaa5fe4e1bcbd808d8a1d8fbe3%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637437300597100610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=bP6V%2F583P1rImmHm6nxxnvpOr4mHAkrXKP59LTedDSQ%3D&reserved=0


 

 
                                

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Part I 

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies for Absence 
  

2   Declarations of interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee 
 

3   Chairman's Announcements  
 

4   Public Participation  

 The Panel welcomes contributions from members of the public 
 
 
Statements 
 
If you wish to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this agenda, 
please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Speakers are 
permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes on any agenda item. Please contact the 
officer named on the first page of the agenda for any further clarification 
 
Questions 
 
Members of the public are able to ask questions in relation to the responsibilities 
and functions of the Panel at each meeting. Those wishing to ask questions are 
required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the Head of 
Democratic Services at Wiltshire Council no later than 5.00 pm on Monday 4 
January 2021. Please contact the officer named on the first page of the agenda 
for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman 
decides that the matter is urgent 
 

5   PCC Budget 2021/22 and MTFS  

 Clive Barker to present the PCC’s Draft Budget Settlement for 2021/22, 
including the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital Strategy 

 

6   Forward Work Plan (Pages 5 - 6) 

 To note the forward work plan 



 

 
                                

Page 4 

 

7   Future meeting dates  

 To note the future meeting dates below: 
 

 Thursday 4 February 2021 - 10am 
 

 Thursday 18 March 2021 - 10am 
 
 

 Part II 

 Item(s) during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed 

 

None 



 
 
 

Meeting Police and Crime Panel 

Date 7th January 2021 

Report Title Draft Budget Settlement 

Report 
presented 
by 

Angus Macpherson, Police and Crime Commissioner 

Author Clive Barker, Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 This paper provides the panel with information on the draft budget and precept being  
       considered. 

 
 

2.0 Background 
 
2.1 On the 17 December the provisional settlement was announced by the government.  

This settlement confirmed that PCCs would be able to increase Band D Council Tax 
by £15 and that £415m has been provided to fund an additional 6,000 officers 
nationally.  Whilst this is good news the usual letter to PCCs identifying requirements 
and detailing the settlement is still outstanding, when this is received it may lead to 
some changes in my proposals. 

 
2.2 The MTFS forecasts the estimated financial position over the next 4 years and the 

impact this has on my ability to commission services. There remains no certainty 
surrounding future years funding, this is a one-year settlement.   

 
2.3 With the lack of funding information, it means financial planning beyond 2020-21 is 

more uncertain than usual.  The impact of Covid 19 on the economy and future 
settlements alongside the government’s desire to continue increasing officers makes 
estimating future settlements very difficult.  These risks are in my mind as I look to 
secure the viability of the service in future years.  I am cognisant that decisions I 
make today will impact finances available over the medium and long term and to 
future PCCs.   
 

 
3.0 Central Grant 

 
3.1   The Total Grant announced is £73.946m, this is a £3.384m increase on the £70.562m 

provided in 2020-21.  Whilst the detail has not been provided by the Home Office, it 
is assumed that this increase is Wiltshire’s share of the £415m of the Uplift grant 
provided (£415m x 0.81% = £3.362m). 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
3.2 This shows that no additional funding has been provided for inflationary growth or 

other funding pressures.  It is assumed that this must be funded by the precept 
increase and savings. 
 

 
4.0 Council Tax Scenarios 

 
4.1 Figures reported by the Government suggest a £7.3m increase in funding for 

Wiltshire.  These figures are dependent on me increasing the Band D Council Tax by 
£15.  This would raise £3.8m. 

4.2 I have asked for 3 scenarios to be modelled; 
 

 Option A – To increase council tax by £15 per annum (6.9%) 

 Option B – To increase council tax by £12 per annum (5.5%) 

 Option C – To increase council tax by £10 per annum (4.6%) 
 
4.3 The impact of a 1% increase in council tax is £0.570m 
 
4.4 The figures calculated consider a slight reduction in the Council Tax Base and the 

funding of the collection fund deficit, more detail is shown later in the paper. 
 
 

5.0 Total Funding Scenarios 
 

5.1 The table below shows the estimated funds I will have available under these options.  
This paper focuses on 2021-22, the MTFS shows future funding position with the 
caveat that they are based on numerous assumptions due to the lack of information.    

 

 2020-21 
Budget 

2021-22 
Option A 

£15 CT incr. 
 

2021-22 
Option B 

£12 CT incr. 
 

2021-22 
Option C 

£10 CT incr. 
 

Central Grant £62.942m £66.909m £66.909m £66.909m 

Local Precept (CTax) £57.055m £61.004m £60.213m £59.685m 

Legacy Council Tax Grant £5.235m £5.235m £5.235m £5.235m 

Collection Fund £0.293m -£0.078m -£0.078m -£0.078m 

Investment Income £0.200m £0.079m £0.079m £0.079m 

Standard Funding available 
to commission services  

£125.725m £133.149m £132.358m £131.830m 

     

Ringfenced Uplift Grant £1.384m £0.800m £0.800m £0.800m 

Standard Funding + Uplift £127.109m £133.949m £133.158m £132.630m 

     

Swindon PFI Specific Grant £2.067m £2.067m £2.067m £2.067m 

Police Officer Pensions 
Grant 

£1.002m £1.002m £1.002m £1.002m 

Special Policing Specific 
Grant 

£1.117m £1.117m £1.117m £1.117m 

Total Funding £131.295m £138.135m £137.344m £136.816m 

 

Page 6



5.2 In addition to this I have central funding allocated to me to commission victims 
services and to support restorative justice.  No information has been provided on this 
figure, currently I am planning on this remaining stable at £0.892m. 
 

5.3 When I consider council tax increases, I am focused on protecting local policing and 
the long-term funding position.  To not increase council tax at this time will have 
considerable impacts on the future ability to commission policing and crime services.   

 
5.4 In 2020-21 Wiltshire received central funding of £97.76 per head of population under 

the current formula.  This compares to a national average of £123.91 per head.  
Being the 4th lowest centrally funded PCC per head of population increases my 
reliance on council tax. 

 
5.5 A £15 per annum increase in Council Tax will result in Wiltshire’s Band D council tax 

increasing from £216.27 to £231.27 (6.9% increase).  The table below shows that 
even with no increases in the rest of the South West, Wiltshire’s policing precept will 
still be lower than Gloucestershire and Dorset.  It is, however, likely that even with a 
£15 increase Wiltshire will remain the lowest in the region. 
 

 2020-21 Act  
Band D CTax 

Wiltshire £10 
inc 

Wiltshire £12 
inc 

Wiltshire £15 
inc 

Gloucestershire £257.25    

Dorset £240.58    

Avon & Somerset £227.81    

Devon & Cornwall £221.64    

Wiltshire £216.27 £226.27 £228.27 £231.27 

 
5.6 In calculating the funding available a slight decrease in the council tax base has been 

included.  The decrease for Wiltshire Council is 0.22%, in Swindon Borough Council 
an increase of 0.5% has been declared. This results in a consolidated reduction in 
the council tax base of 0.1%.  Since the introduction of this funding mechanism this is 
the first time there has been a decrease in the base in Wiltshire. 

 
5.7 Covid 19 has also affected the number of people paying council tax.  For the first 

time this has led to a collection fund deficit (estimated at £0.934m for Wilshire 
Police).  The government have introduced support to help finance deficits, the impact 
on this to Wiltshire Police is currently being worked through.  At the time of writing it 
is assumed that 75% of the combined deficit will be funded, this leaves £0.234m. 
Legislation has been introduced to share this cost over 3 years (£0.078m p.a).  

 
5.8 The Legacy Council Grant has remained at £5.235m since 2013-14.  This grant 

compensates PCCs for not raising the precept between 2011 and 2013.  The MTFS 
assumes that this grant will continue in future years with no increase or reduction (i.e. 
Cash flat). 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



6.0 Future Funding 
 

6.1 In recent years there has been a debate surrounding the policing funding formula.  
Due to our low funding per head of population, it is reasonable to expect that a 
change will benefit Wiltshire.  It was anticipated that the change would be 
implemented in 2017-18, however, it was delayed.  It was then announced that this 
would occur in 2018-19 but no progress has been made.  Information suggested that 
2021-22 would be the earliest that any change will be implemented, however, with 
Covid this has not occurred. 

 
6.2 Considering the delays in a fair funding settlement and the impact council tax income 

will have on policing in Wiltshire now and in the future, I will be proposing to consult 
the public surrounding an increase to the Band D Council Tax of £15 this year 
(Option A).  In comparison to Option B (£12 increase) this would provide additional 
funds of £0.791m to keep the people of Wiltshire safe, year on year, for an additional 
25p per month per Band D property. 

 
6.3 The use of reserves is a high-profile issue within the police service.  Within the MTFS 

I have revised my policy and set out clearly how I intend using them in the short to 
medium term.   

 
6.4 There remains an expectation that the police improve efficiency, productivity and 

effectiveness.  Whilst I intend that Wiltshire will continue to improve its efficiency and 
effectiveness the ring fencing of police officer numbers with the Uplift Grant will make 
this more difficult.  

 
 

 
7.0 Uplift Grant - Police Officer Numbers 
 
7.1 As detailed in paragraph 3.1, Wiltshire has received the equivalent of £3.361m (with 

£0.800m ringfenced) to fund the cumulative 97 uplift officers (year 1 49 and year 2 
48).  It is proposed to set aside £4.234m to finance these officers and the costs 
surrounding their introduction (training, ICT, uniform, vehicles, etc..). 

 
7.2 By the end of 2021-22 Wiltshire Police, I will have increased police officer numbers to 

1,098 officers, from a low position of 934. 
 
7.3 It is proposed to allocate the additional 48 officers as below; 

 

 Officers 

Starting Position (1 April 2020) 1,050 

Reg. Organised Crime Units (prescribed in Grant) 2 

Authorised Firearms Officers 4 

Force Command Structure 7 

Fraud Prevention 1 

Neighbourhood Capabilities 16 

Protecting the Vulnerable 18 

Total 1,098 

 
7.4 Whilst it will be some time before the officers are available for independent 

deployment it is planned to post 16 into the Neighbourhood. The table below shows 

Page 8



the proposed split and the benefits expected which all relate to the Police and Crime 
Plan. 

 

7 Community 
Intelligence Dev. 
2 Rural Crime  
3 Community Road 
Safety 

 Intelligence investment will allow improved focus 
on community problems, better understanding and 
ultimate reduction of crime (acquisitive, community 
based drug dealing, low level assault, ASB, 
community tension issues i.e. youth gang culture) 

4 Early Intervention  Will result in efficient daily tasking rather than 
sporadic, poorly informed targeting 

  Increase in high-quality community intelligence 
submissions at a neighbourhood level 

  Enhanced Rural Crime capability 
  Focussed Community Speed-watch prevention 

and enforcement capability 

  Greater focus on preventative activities, not 
reactive problem solving 

 
7.5 18 officers will also be invested in Protecting the most Vulnerable.  This would see, 

for instance, investment in both exploitation and cyber teams.  This will help to 
increase capacity in areas of new crime demand and complex crime types. 

 
7.6 With an increase of £15 I will also be able to maintain the current PCSO 

establishment at 132. 
 

 
 
8.0 The Capital Financing Strategy 
 
8.1 In 2019-20 I reviewed my strategy surrounding capital financing.  With low levels of 

central grant (£0.109m p.a. in 2020-21 and 2021-22) and reducing reserves the 
financing of essential ICT investment and making our facilities fit for modern day 
policing has become a concern. I therefore implemented a policy which included 
borrowing for the first time to finance long term capital projects in 2019-20. 

 
8.2 I have reviewed this strategy in 2020 with the following objectives; 
 

 To finance the revised 2021-21 plan 

 To review cost estimates for reasonableness 

 To improve the alignment of financing to the asset benefit length 

 To take into account forecasted lower capital receipts 

 To, if possible, reduce the revenue consequences in 2021-22. 
 
8.3 All these objectives have been achieved with the revenue consequences in 2021-22 

reducing from £2.505m to £2.329m, a £0.176m reduction. The revised strategy is 
included as part of the MTFS. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



9.0 The Revenue Budget Proposal 
 

9.1 The table below identifies the current Budget Proposal at a high level (more 
information is included in the MTFS) to meet the funding allocation of £133.949m 
available with the £15 Council Tax increase. 
 

Budget Bfwd £125.724m 

Unavoidable costs £3.280m 

Planned and Demand based Investments £0.742m 

Officer Uplift costs £4.234m 

Collision Investigation Equipment £0.250m 

Overtime £0.303m 

Sub Total £134.533m 

Savings -£0.584m 

Budget Requirement £133.949m 

 
9.2 There are several costs which are unavoidable, these include inflation and a number 

of items which are nationally mandated.  The national increases surround Air 
Support, ICT systems, Single on Line Home and pensions. 

 
9.3 The Planned and Demand based investments cover several areas which are 

considered critical or mandated posts, for instance Child Protection Conference Staff, 
Scrutiny Post, and Complaints Administrators. 

 
9.4 It also includes the outcome from the Force Management Statement (FMS). The 

FMS is a mandated self-assessment tool required by HMICFRS.  This is the third 
year it has been produced and totals over 700 pages.  It requires forces to self-
assess current levels of service and look ahead to identify future capacity issues.  
This is used by the Chief Constable to provide the PCC with advice and evidence for 
investments required to respond to policing challenges.  Also included within this 
section are 3 staff to improve the efficiency of Out of Court Disposals, these staff will 
administer local resolution work.  This is currently undertaken by Police Officers when 
time allows, having dedicated resources undertaking this is expected to result in 
lower reoffending and better victim satisfaction rates. 

 
9.5 In 2022 all forces must by ISO accredited to undertake Collision Investigation work.  

To meet the requirement the Force must invest in Equipment, ICT and estate.  The 
initial Business Case has been produced, whilst not formally approved yet the need 
to invest in this area is unavoidable. 

 
9.6 In recent years the force has overspent its overtime budget.  Whilst pressure is being 

maintained to reduce costs and incur overtime only when essential there is a need to 
keep to minimum staffing levels for Authorised Firearms Officers and for CPT Officers 
to respond to community policing needs.  This funding will allow us to allocate 
budgets where essential and then hold commanders to account knowing their budget 
allocation is reasonable.  It is expected that this level of funding can reduce in the 
long term when the 3-year uplift in officers is complete and the new officers are 
available for independent deployment. 

 
 
 

 

Page 10



10.0 OPCC Direct Expenditure 
 
10.1 In 2020-21 I intend retaining £1.632m for the Office of the PCC (OPCC) and £1.646m 

for direct commissioning.  This total of £3.278m remains at 2.4% of the budget. 
 
10.2 The OPCC cost includes 3 staff commissioning services.  These staff commission the 

services required to deliver the Police and Crime Plan, in 2020-21 they 
commissioned services in excess of £3m. This year the team have distributed 
external grants including £0.482m of extraordinary Covid grants for domestic and 
sexual abuse services, £0.892m victims funding (para 5.2) and have been successful 
in a £0.200m bid for further domestic abuse support over the next two years. 

 
10.3 The 2020-21 commissioning budget was presented to the PCP at the March 2020 

meeting, it is intended to present the new budget to the PCP in March 2021. 
 
11.0 Savings Plans 
 
11.1 It is proposed to deliver £0.584m of direct savings.  By embedding some changes 

which have been imposed by Covid, with a number of staff working from home, 
£0.181m is considered deliverable by reducing travel, copying, conference fees, etc. 

 

12.0 Reserves 
 
12.1 A complete review of reserves has taken place with the outcome disclosed in the 

MTFS.  The value of the general reserve has been considered and I am advised that 
£3.328m (2.5% of the revenue budget) is acceptable. 
 

13.0 Risks 
 
13.1 There remain some questions about the funding as the normal settlement letter has 

not been received, when received changes may be required. It should be noted that 
this is a provisional settlement which can change.  

  
13.2 The national reduction in Top slice surrounding ROCU’s (Regional Organised Crime 

Units) is a concern.  Over £50m has been removed from the national settlement. 
There is no explanation as to how ROCUs will be financed without this money and 
whether there will be a call for increased local funding. 

 
14.1 Conclusion 
 
14.1 This paper shows the panel my MTFS and my current thinking surrounding the 2021-

22 precept.   I believe a £15 Band D increase per household per year is appropriate 
and it is my intention to consult the public on this. 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



                                              

 

Police and Crime Panel   
Forward Work Plan - 2021  
Please note: this is a working document which is subject to change 
 

Date Location Provisional Agenda Items 

Thursday 7 
January 2021 
 
10am-1pm 

On-Line Meeting 

 PCC Budget 2019/20 and MTFS 
 

Thursday 4 
February 2021 
 
10am-1pm 

On-Line Meeting 

 Formal consideration of PCC Precept proposal 
 

Thursday 18 
March 2021 
 
10am-1pm 

On-Line Meeting 

 Quarterly data (Q3)– Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints  

 Service Commissioning 
 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 6



                                              

 

Thursday 
June 2021 
 
10am-1pm 

On-Line Meeting 

 Quarterly data (Q4)- Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints 

  
 
 

Thursday 
September 
2021 
 
10am-1pm 

On-Line Meeting 

 Quarterly data (Q1)- Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints 

  

Thursday 
December 
2021 
 
10am-1pm 

On-Line Meeting 

 Quarterly data (Q2)- Risk / Performance / Finance / Complaints 

 Service Commissioning update 
 

 

 

P
age 78


	Agenda
	5 PCC Budget 2021/22 and MTFS
	MTFS jan 2021 v2 draft

	6 Forward Work Plan

